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Ecopack Limited
Statement of Financial Position
As at 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June 01 July
2021  2020  2019 

ASSETS Notes
Non-Current Assets Restated Restated
Property, plant and equipment 5 1,336,883      1,408,042      1,426,872      
Intangibles 6 5,291              6,105              6,623              
Advance for capital expenditure - - 18,207            
Long term deposits 12,209            12,209            12,143            

1,354,383      1,426,356      1,463,845      
Current Assets
Inventories 7 442,389          297,598          388,069          
Trade debts  8 228,181          214,694          402,706          
Loans and advances 9 39,521            31,183            123,641          
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 4,722              7,381              13,973            
Advance tax - net 10 36,767            77,433            103,823          
Short term investments 11 7,125              - - 
Cash and bank balances 12 28,697            20,278            35,513            

787,402          648,567          1,067,725      
Total assets 2,141,785      2,074,923      2,531,570      

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Share capital 13 381,489          381,489          346,809          
Revaluation surplus on operating fixed assets 14 121,233          138,582          144,962          
Unappropriated profits 347,347          284,558          415,651          

850,069          804,629          907,422          
LIABILITIES
Non-Current Liabilities
Long term loans 15 139,511          91,816            66,667            
Deferred grant 16 2,152              3,123              - 
Lease liabilities 17 107,703          195,660          200,636          
Employee benefits 18 33,979            104,884          126,996          
Deferred tax liabilities - net 19 22,145            49,311            129,234          

305,490          444,794          523,533          
Current Liabilities
Trade and other payables 20 212,608          239,665          203,452          
Unclaimed dividend 2,761              2,719              2,527              
Short term borrowings 21 595,040          525,209          737,682          
Current portion of non-current liabilities 22 175,817          57,907            156,954          

986,226          825,500          1,100,615      

Total equity and liabilities 2,141,785      2,074,923      2,531,570      

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 23

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

__________________ __________________ __________________
Chief Financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer

---------- Rupees in '000 ----------



Ecopack Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss
For the year ended 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June
2021  2020 

Notes ----- Rupees in '000 -----

Sales - net 24 3,100,689      3,053,947      

Cost of sales 25 (2,798,092)     (2,905,983)     

Gross profit 302,597         147,964         

Other income 26 13,636            16,469            

Selling expenses 27 (26,552)          (27,878)          

Administrative expenses 28 (100,046)        (95,786)          

Reversal of impairment loss on trade debts 8.1 646 1,979              

Other expenses 29 (31,119)          (30,416)          

(143,435)      (135,632)        

Operating profit 159,162         12,332            

Finance costs 30 (92,659)        (157,213)        

Profit / (loss) before taxation 66,503            (144,881)        

Income tax (charge) / credit 31 (20,389)        41,181           

Profit / (loss) for the year 46,114            (103,700)        

Earnings / (loss) per share-basic and diluted - Rupees 1.21               (2.72)             

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_______________ __________________ __________________
Chief Financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer



Ecopack Limited
Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 30 June 2021

30 June 30 June
2021 2020 

Notes ----- Rupees in '000 -----

Profit / (loss) for the year 46,114          (103,700)         

Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss

- Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - 21,700            
Related tax - (6,018)             

- 15,682            

- Reversal of surplus on recognition of impairment 
loss on idle machinery - (11,497)           
Related tax - 3,334              

- (8,163)             

- Remeasurements of defined benefit liability 18.8 (949)               15,110            
Related tax 275                (4,382)             

(674)                10,728            

Total comprehensive income / (loss) for the year 45,440            (85,453)           

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_______________ __________________ __________________
Chief Financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer



Ecopack Limited
Statement of Changes In Equity
For the year ended 30 June 2021

 Share 
Capital 

 Revaluation 
surplus on 
operating 

Fixed Assets 

 Revenue 
Reserve-

Unappropriated 
profits 

 Total Equity 

Balance as at 1 July 2019 346,809     144,962      415,651               907,422      

Total comprehensive income for the year
Loss for the year -             - (103,700)             (103,700)     
Other comprehensive income for the year -             7,519          10,728 18,247        

-             7,519          (92,972) (85,453)       
Transfer of incremental depreciation - 

net of deferred tax -             (13,899)       13,899 -

Transactions with owners of the Company
Distributions
Issuance of bonus shares @ 10% 34,680       - (34,680) -
Final dividend @ 5% for the year

ended 30 June 2019 -             - (17,340) (17,340)       
Total distributions 34,680       - (52,020) (17,340)       

Balance as at 30 June 2020 381,489       138,582        284,558                804,629       

Balance as at 01 July 2020 381,489     138,582      284,558               804,629      

Total comprehensive income for the year
Profit for the year -             - 46,114 46,114        
Other comprehensive income for the year -             - (674) (674)            

-             - 45,440 45,440        
Transfer of incremental depreciation - 

net of deferred tax -             (15,485)       15,485 -

Transfer of surplus upon disposal of 
operating fixed assets - net of deferred tax (1,864)         1,864 -

Balance as at 30 June 2021 381,489       121,233        347,347                850,069       

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements.

_______________ __________________ __________________
Chief Financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer

------------------------------ (Rupees in '000) ------------------------------



Ecopack Limited
Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020 
Notes ----- Rupees in '000 -----

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
 Profit / (Loss) before taxation 66,503           (144,881)        

Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortization 25 & 28 129,493         135,343         
Loss / (gain) on disposal of operating fixed assets 29 16,228           (277)
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund 29 716                -
Provision for Workers' Profits Participation Fund 29 3,676             -
Other receivables written off 29 - 1,382             
Provision for contingencies 29 9,341             -
Provision for Cash settled share-based payment transaction 2,608             (122)
Reversal of impairment loss on trade debts 8.1 (646)               (1,979)            
Impairment loss on operating fixed assets - idle machine 29 - 13,166           
Charge for staff retirement benefit - gratuity 18.7 11,525           27,535           
Finance costs 30 92,659           157,213         

332,103         187,380         
Changes in:
Inventories (144,791)        90,471           
Trade debts (12,841)          189,991         
Loans and advances (8,338)            92,458           
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 2,659             5,210             
Trade and other payables (40,790)          41,955           
Long-term deposits - (66)

(204,101)        420,019         
Cash generated from operating activities 128,002         607,399         

Finance cost paid - short-term borrowings (70,197)          (108,381)        
Contributions to gratuity fund 18.3 (82,200)          (34,415)          
Payment of Cash settled share-based payment transaction (3,787)            -
Payment to Workers' profit participation fund - (5,742)            
Income taxes paid 10 (6,614)            (19,419)          

Net cash (used in) / generated from operating activities (34,796)          439,442         

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (86,682)          (117,356)        
Advance for capital expenditure - 18,207           
Short term investments made 11 (7,125)            -
Proceeds from disposal of operating fixed assets 15,691           940
Acquisition of intangible assets - (279) 
Net cash used in investing activities (78,116)          (98,488)          

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Principal repayment of lease liabilities 17 (41,221)          (46,435)          
Interest on unclaimed dividend account / (dividends paid) 42 (17,148)          
Proceeds from short-term borrowings 1,947,702     2,042,205      
Repayment of short term borrowings (1,828,447)    (2,281,962)     
Proceeds from long-term loans 141,659         35,918           
Repayment of long-term loans (25,474)          (65,000)          
Finance cost paid on long-term loans and lease liabilities (32,559)          (50,773)          
Net cash generated from / (used in)  financing activities 161,702         (383,195)        
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 48,790           (42,241)          
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year (20,093)          22,148           
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year 33 28,697           (20,093)          

The annexed notes 1 to 44 form an integral part of these financial statements

_______________ __________________ __________________
Chief Financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

1. STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

Geographical location and address of business unit / plant:

Location Address Purpose
Hattar Plot - 112,113, Phase V, Hattar Industrial

Estate, Hattar, KPK Registered office and factory

Rawalpindi 19, Citi villas Near High Court Road Head Office

Lahore  5, 1st Floor Al Hafeez View Gulberg III Sales & Marketing

Karachi Suite # 306, 3rd Floor, Clifton Diamond, Administration Office
Block - 4, Clifton

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

2.1 Statement of compliance

●

● provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

2.2 Basis of measurement

Items Measurement basis
Liabilities for cash-settled share-based 

payment arrangements Fair Value
Net defined benefit liability Present value of the defined benefit obligation
Property, plant and equipment

2.3 Functional and presentation currency

Revalued amount (land, building and owned 
machinery)

Ecopack Limited (the Company) is a limited liability Company incorporated in Pakistan and is listed on
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The registered office and manufacturing facility of the Company is
located at Hattar Industrial Estate, Khyber Pakhtunkhwa. The principal business activity of the Company
is manufacturing and sale of Polyethylene Terephthalate (PET) bottles and preforms for the market of
Beverages and other liquid packaging industry.

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies Act, 2017 (the Act), and

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRS
Standards, the  provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for following
items which are measured on an alternative basis on each reporting date.

These financial statements are presented in Pakistan Rupees, which is the Company's functional
currency. All amounts have been rounded to the nearest thousand, unless otherwise stated.



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

Note

(i) Useful life and residual values of property, plant and equipment 4.1
(ii) Provision for slow moving and obsolete stores, spares and loose tools 4.3.1 & 4.3.2
(iii) Provision for staff retirement benefits - key actuarial assumptions 4.7
(iv) Provision for taxation and recognition of deferred tax assets 4.8
v) Measurement of ECL allowance for trade receivables 4.5
vi) Provisions and contingencies 4.13

2.5 Measurement of fair values

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2:

Level 3:

The Company's accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of fair values, for both
financial and non-financial assets and liabilities. The Company has an established controlled framework
with respect to the measurement of fair values. The management has overall responsibility for
overseeing all significant fair value measurements including Level 3 values.

The management regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs, if relevant, and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker codes or pricing services, is used to measure fair
values, then the management assesses the evidence obtained from the third parties to support the
conclusion that their valuations meet the requirements of approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan, including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.
Significant valuation issues are reported to the Company's Audit Committee.

If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair
value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair
value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire measurement.

inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 above that are observable market
data for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices).

inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e.
unobservable inputs).

The Company recognizes transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
period during which the change has occurred.

In preparing these financial statements, management has made judgements and estimates that affect the 
application of the Company's accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income
and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Estimates and the underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to estimates are
recognized prospectively.

In particular, information about significant areas of estimation uncertainty and critical judgements in
applying accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
financial statements is included in the following notes:



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

3. STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE

●

●

- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease. 

The above amendment is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

The practical expedient introduced in the 2020 amendments only applied to rent concessions for
which any reduction in lease payments affected payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021.
In light of persistence of economic challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, the Board has
extended the practical expedient for COVID-19 related rent concessions by one year i.e. permitting
lessees to apply it to rent concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022.

The following International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS Standards) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017 and the amendments and interpretations thereto will be effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2021:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform – Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and
IFRS 16 is applicable for annual financial periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021, with earlier
application permitted. The amendments introduce a practical expedient to account for modifications
of financial assets or financial liabilities if a change results directly from IBOR reform and occurs on
an ‘economically equivalent’ basis. In these cases, changes will be accounted for by updating the
effective interest rate. A similar practical expedient will apply under IFRS 16 for lessees when
accounting for lease modifications required by IBOR reform. The amendments also allow a series of
exemptions from the regular, strict rules around hedge accounting for hedging relationships directly
affected by the interest rate benchmark reforms. The amendments apply retrospectively with earlier
application permitted. Hedging relationships previously discontinued solely because of changes
resulting from the reform will be reinstated if certain conditions are met. The amendment is not likely
to have an impact on the Company's financial statements

COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions (Amendment to IFRS 16) – the International Accounting
Standards Board (the Board) has issued amendments to IFRS 16 (the amendments) to provide
practical relief for lessees in accounting for rent concessions. The amendments are effective for
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020, with earlier application permitted. Under the standard’s
previous requirements, lessees assess whether rent concessions are lease modifications and, if so,
apply the specific guidance on accounting for lease modifications. This generally involves
remeasuring the lease liability using the revised lease payments and a revised discount rate. In light
of the effects of the COVID-19 pandemic, and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard
for the first time in their financial statements, the Board has provided an optional practical expedient
for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible rent
concessions are lease modifications, and instead are permitted to account for them as if they were
not lease modifications

Rent concessions are eligible for the practical expedient if they occur as a direct consequence of the
COVID-19 pandemic and if all the following criteria are met:

- the change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change; 

- any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022;
and 



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

●

Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020

●

●

●

Onerous Contracts – Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37) effective for the annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 amends IAS 1 by mainly adding paragraphs which
clarifies what comprises the cost of fulfilling a contract, Cost of fulfilling a contract is relevant when
determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to
contracts for which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of
comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application. The
amendment is not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statement

The following annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16) effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022 clarifies that sales proceeds and costs of items
produced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management e.g. when testing
etc., are recognized in profit or loss in accordance with applicable Standards. The entity measures
the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of IAS 2. The standard also
removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall
apply those amendments retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are
brought to the location and condition necessary for them to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the
cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of
retained earnings (or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest
period presented
Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments to IFRS 3) - Reference to the Conceptual
Framework, issued in May 2020, amended paragraphs 11, 14, 21, 22 and 23 of and added
paragraphs 21A, 21B, 21C and 23A to IFRS 3 . An entity shall apply those amendments to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting
period beginning on or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted if at the same time or
earlier an entity also applies all the amendments made by Amendments to References to the
Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards issued in March 2018

- IFRS 9 – The amendment clarifies that an entity includes only fees paid or received between the
entity (the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on the other’s behalf, when it applies the ‘10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability.

- IFRS 16 – The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 by
excluding the illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective
of the amendment is to resolve any potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives. 

- IAS 41 – The amendment removes the requirement in paragraph 22 of IAS 41 for entities to
exclude taxation cash flows when measuring the fair value of a biological asset using a present
value technique.



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

●

●

●

●

●

The above amendments are not likely to have an impact on the Company's financial statements.

- requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their significant

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1) amendments apply
retrospectively for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. These amendments in
the standards have been added to further clarify when a liability is classified as current. The
standard also amends the aspect of classification of liability as non-current by requiring the
assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settlement of liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments
retrospectively in accordance with IAS 8

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) – the
Board has issued amendments on the application of materiality to disclosure of accounting policies
and to help companies provide useful accounting policy disclosures. The key amendments to IAS 1
include:

are themselves immaterial and as such need not be disclosed; and
- clarifying that not all accounting policies that relate to material transactions, other events or
conditions are themselves material to a company’s financial statements

accounting policies;
- clarifying that accounting policies related to immaterial transactions, other events or conditions

The Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and two additional
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The amendments are
effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 with earlier application
permitted.

Definition of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) – The amendments introduce a new
definition for accounting estimates clarifying that they are monetary amounts in the financial
statements that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also clarify the
relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by specifying that a company
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective set out by an accounting policy. The
amendments are effective for periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023, and will apply
prospectively to changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies occurring on
or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period in which the company applies the
amendments

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS
12) – The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exemption (IRE) so that it does not
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. As a result,
companies will need to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising on initial recognition of a lease and a decommissioning provision. For leases and
decommissioning liabilities, the associated deferred tax asset and liabilities will need to be
recognised from the beginning of the earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative
effect recognised as an adjustment to retained earnings or other components of equity at that date.
The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
with earlier application permitted

Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28) – The amendment amends accounting treatment on loss of control of
business or assets. The amendments also introduce new accounting for less frequent transaction
that involves neither cost nor full step-up of certain retained interests in assets that are not
businesses. The effective date for these changes has been deferred indefinitely until the completion
of a broader review.



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Property, plant and equipment

Owned

(i)  Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent costs

(iii) Derecognition

Any surplus arising on revaluation of plant and machinery is credited to the surplus on revaluation
account. Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of
assets does not differ materially from the fair value. To the extent of the incremental depreciation
charged on the revalued assets, the related surplus on revaluation of plant and machinery (net of
deferred taxation) is transferred directly to retained earnings / unappropriated profit.

These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any,
except for free hold land, factory building and owned plant and machinery which are stated at
revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any. Cost of an
asset comprises acquisition and other costs which are directly attributable to the asset. 

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All
expenditures connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period
are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specified assets as and when
assets are available for use.

The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out
below. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amounts or recognized as separate assets, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the
asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in which the asset is derecognized.
The related balance of surplus on revaluation of such item, if any, is transferred directly to
unappropriated profits.



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

(iv) Depreciation

Right-of-use assets

4.2 Intangible assets

(i) Recognition and measurement

(ii) Subsequent expenditure

(iii) Amortization

Intangible assets are amortized using the straight line method over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortization method are reviewed at the end of each annual reporting
period, with the effect of any changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis. 

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises of the initial amount of the lease
liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial
direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to
restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received. 

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using either the straight-line method or reducing
balance method from the commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-
of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are
determined on the same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-
use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. An
intangible asset is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits that are attributable
to the asset will flow to the Company and that the cost of such asset can also be measured reliably.
Intangible assets having finite useful lives are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and
accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost represents price equivalent to the consideration given,
i.e., cash and cash equivalent paid.

Subsequent expenditure on capitalized intangible assets is capitalized only when it increases the
future economic benefits embodied in the specific assets to which it relates. All other expenditure is
expensed as incurred.

The assets' residual values, depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each financial year end. The Company's estimate of residual value of property and
equipment as at 30 June 2021 did not require any adjustment as its impact is considered
insignificant.

Depreciation is charged to statement of profit or loss applying either straight line method or written
down value method whereby the cost or revalued amount of an asset less its estimated residual
value, if any, is written off over its useful life at the rates specified in note 5.1 to the financial
statements. Depreciation on additions is charged for the full month in which asset is available for use
and no depreciation is charged for the month in which asset is disposed off.



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

4.3 Inventories

Inventories comprise of stores, spares, loose tools and stock-in-trade:

4.3.1 Stores, spares and loose tools

4.3.2 Stock-in-trade

4.4 Financial Instruments

(i) Recognition and initial measurement

(ii) Classification and subsequent measurement

Financial assets :

Stores, spares and loose tools excluding items in transit are valued at lower of weighted average cost
and net realizable value. Provision is made for slow moving and obsolete items. Items in transit are
valued at cost comprising invoice values plus other charges incurred thereon accumulated to the date of
statement of financial position.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on
management's best estimate regarding their future usability.

Trade receivables are initially recognized when they are originated. All other financial assets and
financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; FVOCI – debt
investment; FVOCI – equity investment; or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Company
changes its business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets
are reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at weighted average cost and finished goods are valued
at lower of weighted average cost and net realizable value. Raw material and packing material in transit
are valued at invoice value plus other charges paid thereon.

Work-in-process is valued at weighted average cost of raw materials including a proportionate of
manufacturing overheads. Cost of finished goods includes an appropriate share of production overheads
based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to be incurred to make the sale.

Provisions are made in the financial statements for obsolete and slow moving inventory based on
management's best estimate regarding there future usability.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component) or
financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs
that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the transaction price.
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 cashflows; and

Financial assets – Business model assessment :

Financial assets – Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses :

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the
Company considers the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the
financial asset contains a contractual term that could change the timing or amount of contractual
cash flows such that it would not meet this condition.

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and
losses, including any interest expense, are recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Interest expense and
foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition
is also recognized in profit or loss

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Net gains and losses, including any interest or dividend
income, are recognised in profit or loss.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method. The amortized
cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income,
foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are
recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortized cost or FVOCI as described above are
measured at FVTPL.

On initial recognition, the company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets
the requirements to be measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates
or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial
asset is held at a portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and
information is provided to management.

Financial assets – Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and
interest

For the purposes of this assessment, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on
initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit
risk associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other
basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

–– it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual

–– its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:
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(iii) Derecognition

Financial assets:

Financial liabilities

(iv) Offsetting

4.5 Impairment

(i) Non-derivative financial assets

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

- the counter party is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without
recourse by the Company to actions such as realizing security (if any is held); or

- the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

The company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of
financial position, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred
assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

The Company derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or
cancelled, or expire. The Company also derecognizes a financial liability when its terms are modified
and the cash flows of modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial
liability is recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and
the consideration paid is recognized in profit or loss.

The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the
financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction
in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred
or in which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of
financial position, if the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts
and intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

The Company recognizes loss allowances for Expected Credit Losses (ECLs) on financial assets
measured at amortized cost. The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the Company is exposed to credit risk.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. For trade
receivables, the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the
Company does not track changes in credit risk, instead recognizes a loss allowance based on
lifetime ECLs at each reporting date.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative
and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical experience and
informed credit assessment including forward-looking information.
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Measurement of ECLs :

Credit-impaired financial assets:

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the counterparty;
- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;
- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not

consider otherwise;
- it is probable that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or
- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position:

Write-off

(ii) Non-Financial Assets

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial asset.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than
12 months).

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the
present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Company expects to receive). ECLs are
discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized cost
are credit impaired. A financial asset is ‘credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a
detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross
carrying amount of the assets and charged to profit or loss.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable
expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company
individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing and amount of write-off based on
whether there is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be
subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of
amounts due

At each reporting date, the company reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than biological assets, investment property, inventories, contract assets and deferred tax assets) to
determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.
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4.6 Leases liability

a. fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;
b. variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index or

rate as at the commencement date; 
c. amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
d.

Sale and lease back arrangements

In the case of a sale and lease back transaction, the Company determines whether or not control of the
asset has been transferred. If control of the asset has been transferred, the Company measures the right-
of-use asset arising from the leaseback at the proportion of the previous carrying amount of the asset
that relates to the right of use retained by the Company. If Control has not been transferred, then the
Company continue to recognise the transferred asset and recognise a financial liability equal to the
transfer proceeds. 

the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company is reasonably certain to exercise,
lease payments in an optional renewal period if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an
extension option, and penalties for early termination of a lease unless the Company is reasonably
certain not to terminate early.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss. They are allocated to reduce the carrying
amounts of assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

An impairment loss in respect of goodwill is not reversed. For other assets, an impairment loss is
reversed only to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if no impairment loss had
been recognised.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the
commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or if that rate can not be
readily determined, the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its
incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. Lease payments in the measurement of the lease liability
comprise the following:    

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured
when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, if there is a
change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or
termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use
asset has been reduced to zero.
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4.7 Staff Benefits

(i) Short-term employee benefits

(ii) Share-based payment arrangements

(iii) Defined contribution plans

(iv) Defined benefit plans

All actuarial gains and losses arising on valuation are charged to other comprehensive income.

4.8 Taxation

(i) Income tax

A defined benefit plan is post employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution plan. The
Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plan is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in return for their service in current and prior periods, that
benefit is discounted to determine its present value. The calculation is performed annually by a
qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. The Company is operating approved gratuity
fund and covers those permanent employees excluding management staff of the Company who
have completed prescribed qualifying period of service. Provision is made annually to cover
obligations under the scheme on the basis of actuarial valuation.

Past service cost is recognized immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested. For
non-vested benefits past service cost is amortized on the straight line basis over the average period
until the amended benefits become vested.

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognized in statement of
profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in statement of
comprehensive income or equity.

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the obligation
can be estimated reliably.

An entity recognizes a cost over the vesting period and a corresponding liability. Measurement is
based on the fair value of the liability at each reporting date, and it is remeasured until settlement
date. The share-based payment is classified and accounted for as either equity-settled or cash-
settled, depending on whether the entity has a present obligation to settle in cash.

A defined contribution plan is a post employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed
contribution into a separate entity and will have no legal and constructive obligation to pay further
amounts. Obligation for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized as an employee
benefit expense in statement of profit or loss when they are due. The Company also operates an
approved funded contributory provident fund for its permanent employees. Equal monthly
contributions are made both by the Company and the employees at the rate of 12.92% per annum of
the basic salary. Company's contributions are charged to statement of profit or loss.

Pursuant to the decision of Board of Directors, gratuity scheme for the management grade staff has
been discontinued effective from 31 December 2020 and thereby contributions to the provident fund
has been increased to 12.92% per annum of the basic salary, and all the related benefits were paid
off by the fund.
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(ii) Current tax

(iii) Deferred tax

- temporary differences on initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction that is not a
business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss;

- taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

4.9 Borrowing costs

4.10 Revenue from contracts with customers

Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reverse, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting date. The
measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its
assets and liabilities. For this purpose, the carrying amount of investment property measured at fair
value is presumed to be recovered through sale, and the Company has not rebutted this
assumption. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if certain criteria are met.

Borrowing costs are recognized as an expense in the period in which they are incurred except, to the
extent of borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a
qualifying asset. Such borrowing costs, if any, are capitalized as part of the cost of that asset.

Customers obtain control of PET bottles and PET preforms when these are delivered to and have been
accepted at their premises. Invoices are generated at that point in time. Invoices are usually payable
within 30-90 days. No material discounts are provided against sale of these good. Some contracts permit
the customer to return an item. Returned goods are exchanged only for new goods – i.e. no cash refunds
are offered.

Provision for current tax is based on taxable income for the year at the applicable tax rates after
taking into account tax credit and tax rebates, if any and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous year.

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
Deferred tax is not recognised for:

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses, unused tax credits, minimum tax paid and
deductible temporary differences to the extent it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be used. Future taxable profits are determined based on business
plans for the Company and the reversal of temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are reviewed
at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax
benefit will be realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits
improves. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and recognised
to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will be available against which
they can be used
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4.11 Foreign currency transactions and translation

4.12 Dividend

4.13 Provisions

4.14 Related party transactions

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional
currency at the exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange
rate when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured based on historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated at the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency
differences are generally recognized in profit or loss and presented within finance costs.

Dividend distribution to the Company's shareholders and appropriation to reserves are recognized as a
liability in the financial statements in the period in which these are approved. Transfer between reserves
made subsequent to the date of statement of financial position is considered as a non-adjusting event
and is recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such transfers are made.

A provision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation as a result of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.
Provisions are measured at the present value of expected expenditure, discounted at a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessment of the time value of the money and the risk specific to the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each statement of financial position date and adjusted to reflect current best
estimate

All transactions involving related parties arising in the normal course of business are conducted at normal 
commercial rates except in extremely rare circumstances where, subject to the approval of the Board of
Directors, it is in the interest of the Company to do so.

Revenue is recognized when the goods are delivered and have been accepted by customers at their
premises. For contracts that permit the customer to return an item, revenue is recognized to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized will
not occur. Therefore, the amount of revenue recognized is adjusted for expected returns, which are
estimated based on the historical data for specific type of product and size etc. In these circumstances, a
refund liability and a right to recover returned goods asset are recognized. The 'right to recover returned
goods' asset is measured at the former carrying amount of the inventory less any expected costs to
recover goods. Based on historical data, no refund liability and the right to recover returned goods is
recognized. The Company reviews its estimate of expected returns at each reporting date and updates
the amounts of the asset and liability accordingly.

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency of the Company at the
exchange rates at the dates of the transactions.
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4.15 Government Grant

Recognition and measurement :

Subsequent measurement

4.16 Finance Costs

2021 2020
Note ----- Rupees in '000 -----

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Operating fixed assets 5.1 1,312,560    1,385,013     
Capital machines' spares 5.6 24,323           23,029           

1,336,883      1,408,042      

The Company’s Finance Cost represents interest expense on short and long term borrowings and lease
liabilities. Interest expense is recognised using the effective interest method whereby the effective
interest rate is applied to the amortized cost of the liability. 

The loan obtained under the refinance scheme from State Bank of Pakistan is received at below
market interest rate. The benefit of below market interest is accounted for as government grant
under IAS-20. The benefit is measured as the difference between the initial carrying value of the
loan (i.e. fair value of the loan) and the proceeds received. The amount of grant is recognised and
presented in the statement of financial position as 'deferred grant'.

In subsequent years, the grant is recognised in the statement of profit or loss, in line with the
recognition of interest expenses as the grant is compensating. The amount is presented as
reduction of related interest expense.
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5.1 OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Lease-hold 
land

Factory 
building and 

roads on 
lease-hold 

land

Plant and 
machinery

Vehicles
Factory 

equipment
Furniture 

and fittings 
Office 

equipment
Sub total

Plant and 
machinery 

Vehicles Sub total
Capital work 
in progress

Total

Cost / revalued amounts

Balance as at 01 July 2019 23,750         131,576       1,492,436    11,583         452,132       4,790           26,356         2,142,623   412,082       31,972         444,054      - 2,586,677    

Additions - 1,224           47,997         154              20,583         - 4,421           74,379        - 1,865           1,865          37,033         113,277       

Revaluation surplus 950              4,934           15,817         - - - - 21,701        - - -             - 21,701         

Disposals - - (600)             (727)             - - - (1,327)        - - -             - (1,327)          

Transfers - - 36,098         - - - - 36,098        - - -             (36,098)        - 

Balance as at 30 June 2020 24,700         137,734       1,591,748    11,010         472,715       4,790           30,777         2,273,474   412,082       33,837         445,919      935              2,720,328    

Balance as at 01 July 2020 24,700         137,734       1,591,748    11,010         472,715       4,790           30,777         2,273,474   412,082       33,837         445,919      935              2,720,328    

Additions -               -               58,954         156              21,414         3,724           84,248        -               529              529             3,368           88,145         

Disposals -               -               (131,553)      -               -               -               (85)               (131,638)    -               -               -             -               (131,638)      

Transfers -               -               1,295           -               -               -               -               1,295          -               2,568           2,568          (3,863)          -               

Balance as at 30 June 2021 24,700         137,734       1,520,444    11,166         494,129       4,790           34,416         2,227,379   412,082       36,934         449,016      440              2,676,835    

Accumulated depreciation / Impairment

Balance as at 01 July 2019 - 45,488         724,712       4,966           338,680       3,429           16,235         1,133,510   32,932         10,328         43,260        - 1,176,770    

Charge for the year - 4,386           66,776         3,495           28,863         136              2,249           105,905      26,373         2,268           28,641        - 134,546       

Impairment loss on Idle machine - - 24,663         - - - - 24,663        - - -             - 24,663         

On disposals - - (16) (648)             - - - (664)           - - -             - (664)             

Balance as at 30 June 2020 - 49,874         816,135       7,813           367,543       3,565           18,484         1,263,414   59,305         12,596         71,901        - 1,335,315    

Balance as at 01 July 2020 -               49,874         816,135       7,813           367,543       3,565           18,484         1,263,414   59,305         12,596         71,901        -               1,335,315    

Charge for the year -               4,407           66,429         659              24,020         123              2,156           97,794        26,372         4,513           30,885        -               128,679       

On disposals -               -               (99,656)        -               -               -               (63)               (99,719)      -               -               -             -               (99,719)        

Balance as at 30 June 2021 -               54,281         782,908       8,472           391,563       3,688           20,577         1,261,489   85,677         17,109         102,786      -               1,364,275    

Carrying amounts - 2021 24,700         83,453         737,536       2,694           102,566       1,102           13,839         965,890      326,405       19,825         346,230      440              1,312,560    

Carrying amounts - 2020 24,700         87,860         775,613       3,197           105,172       1,225           12,293         1,010,060   352,777       21,241         374,018      935              1,385,013    

Rates of depreciation (per annum) -               5%-10% 5%-20% 20% 10%-40% 10% 10%-33% 8% 20%

Owned Right of use Assets

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------Rupees'000----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------
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2021 2020
Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

5.2 Depreciation charge has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales 25 119,448         124,683          
Administrative expenses 28 9,231             9,863              

128,679          134,546          

5.3

5.4

2021 2020
------ Rupees in '000' ------

Leasehold land 2,995             2,995              
Factory building and roads on leasehold land 52,446           55,282            
Plant and machinery- owned 629,586         644,798          

685,027          703,075          

5.5

(i) Husky injection machine with accessories

Cost Sale value
(Loss) on 
disposal

 Purchaser 
 Mode of 
disposal 

              130,953          15,791           (15,576)
 Machine point 

consultant 
(Spain) * 

 Negotiation 

* Machine point consultant has no direct relationship with Company or any of Company's directors.

2021 2020
5.6 Capital machines' spares Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Gross carrying value 7.1 24,753           23,459            
Provision for impairment (430)               (430) 

24,323            23,029            

Latest revaluation of the Company's assets was carried out on 31 May 2020 by M/s Iqbal A.Nanjee & Co
(Private) Limited, independent valuers, taking market value / depreciated replacement cost, as applicable, as
a basis of valuation. The revaluation resulted in a net surplus of Rs. 21.7 million. The fair value when
determined falls under level 3 hierarchy. Sensitivity analysis has not been presented since data about
observable input is not available. The incremental values resulting from revaluation are being depreciated
over the remaining useful lives of the respective assets. 

The forced sale value of the revalued plant and machinery, factory building and roads, and leasehold land at
the date of revaluation was Rs. 640.885 million, Rs. 70.597 million and Rs. 19.760 million respectively.

Had there been no revaluation, the net carrying value of specific classes of operating fixed assets would have
been as follows:

All the disposals were made in accordance with the Company's policy. Particulars of operating fixed assets
disposed off during the year that had an aggregate net book value greater than Rs. 5 million are as follows:

Book value

31,367 

--------------------------- Rupees in '000' --------------------------
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5.7 Particulars of immovable property (i.e. land and building) in the name of the Company are as follows:

Location Usage of property Total area (in sq. ft.)

Plot - 112,113, Phase V, Hattar 

Industrial Estate, Hattar, KPK. Registered office and factory

2021 2020
6. INTANGIBLES - ERP Software Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Cost
Opening balance 9,321             9,042            
Additions -                 279               

9,321             9,321            
Accumulated amortization
Opening balance (3,216)            (2,419)           
Amortization for the year (814)               (797)              

(4,030)            (3,216)           

Closing balance 5,291              6,105              

Rate of amortization (per annum) 10% 10%
Amortization method Straight line Straight line

7. INVENTORIES

Stores, spares and loose tools 7.1 67,607           61,790            
Raw materials 106,102         74,183            
Packing materials 23,471           14,874            
Work in process 7.2 203,474         99,846            
Finished goods  7.2 43,929           48,077            

444,583         298,770          
Allowance for obsolete stocks 7.3 (2,194)            (1,172)             

442,389          297,598          

7.1 Stores, spares and loose tools

Stores and spares 100,231         93,249            
Loose tools 2,544             2,415              

102,775         95,664            
Provision against slow moving stores and spares (10,415)          (10,415)           
Capital spares transferred to property, plant and equipment (24,753)          (23,459)           

67,607            61,790            

7.2 This includes stock having cost of Rs. 24.14 million (2020: Rs. 43.04 million) carried at net realizable value of
Rs. 23.67 million (2020: Rs. 20.94 million).

102,507
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2021 2020
7.3 Allowance for obsolete stocks Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Balance as at 1 July 1,172             955 
Provision for the year 1,022             217 
Balance as at 30 June 2,194              1,172              

8. TRADE DEBTS

Trade debts - unsecured 232,616         219,775          
Allowance for impairment 8.1 (4,435)            (5,081)             

228,181          214,694          

8.1 Allowance for impairment

Balance as at 1 July 5,081             7,060              
Net remeasurement of loss allowance (646)               (1,979)             
Balance as at 30 June 4,435              5,081              

8.2

2021 2020
9. LOANS AND ADVANCES Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Considered good
Advance to suppliers - unsecured 9.1 32,195           22,772            
Advances for expenses 3,127             3,879              
Loans to employees - secured against staff

retirement benefit (gratuity) 4,199             4,532              
39,521            31,183            

9.1

Name of Supplier & Country Foreign currency Rupees

2021 2020 2021 2020

-------------------- '000 --------------------

- Jiangxi Saithing Chemical

Packing Co., Ltd (China) CNY 12.53 - 310 - 

- Husky Injection Molding

System Ltd. (England) -              EUR 9 - 1,554              

310 1,554              

Information about the Company’s exposure to credit and market risks, and impairment losses for trade debts
is included in note 38.

This includes advances amounting to Rs. 0.31 million (2020: Rs. 2.9 million) to foreign suppliers for purchase
of items of store and spares in normal course of business of the Company. Detail of major suppliers is as
follows:
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2021 2020
10. ADVANCE TAX - NET Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Restated
Advance tax as at 01 July 77,433           103,823          
Advance tax paid during the year 6,614             19,419            
Tax charge for the year 31 (47,280)          (45,809)           
Advance tax as at 30 June 36,767            77,433            

11. SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

2021 2020
12. CASH AND BANK BALANCES Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Cash at bank
- in saving account 12.1 2,760             360
- in current accounts 25,837           19,818          

28,597           20,178          
Cash in hand 100                100

28,697            20,278            
12.1 This carries mark-up at 5.36% (2020: 11.25%) per annum.

13. SHARE CAPITAL

13.1 Authorized share capital

This represents 50,000,000 (2020: 50,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each.

13.2 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

2021 2020 2021 2020
---------- Number ---------- Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

10,262,664         10,262,664   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
issued against cash 102,627         102,627          

27,886,283         27,886,283   Ordinary shares of Rs. 10/- each
issued as fully paid bonus shares 278,862         278,862          

38,148,947         38,148,947   381,489          381,489          

This represents Term Deposit Receipt (TDR) of Bank AL Habib Limited (the Bank) carrying mark up of 6.10%
per annum and maturing on 2 November 2021. This has been held as margin against Bank Guarantee
issued by the Bank in favour of Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited as mentioned in Note 23.3.
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13.2.1 Movement in issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

2021 2020 2021 2020
---------- Number ---------- ------ Rupees in '000' ------

38,148,947         34,680,911   Balance as at 1 July 381,489         346,809          
- 3,468,036     Bonus shares issued during year - 34,680            

38,148,947         38,148,947   Balance as at 30 June 381,489          381,489          

13.2.2

13.2.3

2021 2020
Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

14. REVALUATION SURPLUS ON OPERATING FIXED ASSETS

Gross surplus
Balance as at 01 July 185,098         194,471          
Surplus on revaluation of operating fixed assets - 21,700            
Reversal of surplus on recognition of impairment

loss on idle machinery - (11,497)           
Transfer of surplus to unappropriated profits upon

disposals of operating fixed assets (2,625)            - 
Incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated profits (21,810)          (19,576)           

160,663  185,098          
Related deferred tax charge
Balance as at 01 July (46,516)          (49,509)           
Deferred tax on recognition of revaluation surplus for the year - (6,018)             
Deferred tax on reversal of revaluation surplus for the year - 3,334              
Deferred tax on operating fixed assets disposed off 761                - 
Deferred tax on incremental depreciation charged during the year 6,325             5,677              

(39,430)          (46,516)           
121,233         138,582        

15. LONG TERM LOANS

Loans from banking companies - secured
Askari Bank Limited 15.1 & 15.6 44,093           - 
Bank Al-Habib Limited - I 15.2 68,000           72,000            
Bank Al-Habib Limited - II 15.3 & 15.6 34,220           - 
JS Bank Limited 15.5 & 15.6 39,206           32,795            
PAIR Investment Company Limited 15.4 32,555           - 

218,074         104,795          
Less: current portion of long term loans 22 (78,563)          (12,979)           

139,511          91,816            

All ordinary shareholders have same rights regarding voting, board selection, right of first refusal and block
voting. 

Closing number of shares include 6,593,076 (2020: 7,915,125) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each held by the
Directors of the Company.
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15.1

15.2

15.3

15.4

15.5

15.6

This represents subsidized rate Term Finance obtained under State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP) Refinance
Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to combat effect of COVID 19. Tenor of the loan is 2 years and
6 months (inclusive of 6 month grace period started from July 2020). The loan is repayable in 8 equal
quarterly installments starting from January 2021. It carries mark-up at SBP Rate plus 2% p.a. payable
quarterly. The loan is secured by Joint Pari Passu on all present and future fixed assets (plant & machinery)
of the Company with 25% margin. 

This represents term loan obtained in year 2019 to release import documents under letter of credit
arrangements for the capital expenditure. Tenor of the loan is five years, including six months grace period.
This is repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments started from 24 May 2019. It carries mark-up at 3 months
KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a. payable on quarterly basis. This loan is secured by specific (first exclusive) charge of
Rs. 171 million over imported / purchased machinery. Principal repayments of the loan were deferred for a
period of one year in pursuance of BPRD Circular No. 6 dated 10 April 2020. 

This represents subsidized rate term loan obtained during the year 2020 under Temporary Economic
Refinance Facility (TERF) of State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to release import documents under letter of credit
arrangements for the capital expenditure. Tenor of the loan is six years, including one year grace period. This
is repayable in 20 equal quarterly installments starting from 01 March 2022. It carries mark-up at 5% p.a.
payable on quarterly basis. This loan is secured by specific (first exclusive) charge of Rs. 171 million over
imported / purchased machinery. 

This represents subsidized rate Term Finance obtained under State Bank of Pakistan’s (SBP) Refinance
Scheme for Payment of Wages and Salaries to combat effect of COVID 19. Tenor of the loan is 2 years and
9 months (inclusive of 6 month grace period started from July 2020). The loan is repayable in 8 equal
quarterly installments starting from January 2021. It carries mark-up at SBP Rate plus 3% p.a. payable
quarterly. The loan is secured by pari passu charge over land, building, plant and machinery of the Company
amounting Rs. 84.2 million.

This represents finance obtained from PAIR Investment Company Limited under sale and lease back
arrangement. As per terms of agreement, the Company has an option to repurchase the assets back upon
expiry of lease term, accordingly proceeds through this arrangement are classified as a financial liability in
accordance with IFRS 9. Tenor of the arrangement is 5 years and with 60 equal monthly installments. It
carries mark-up at 3 months KIBOR plus 1.5% p.a. The loan is secured by charge over plant and machinery
of the Company amounting to Rs. 54.708 million.

Loan proceeds of subsidized loans have been recognized at present value of future cashflows discounted at
market interest rate. The difference between loan proceeds and the present value of future cashflows has
been recognized as deferred grant. Refer to note 16 for deferred grant.
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16. DEFERRED GRANT

2021 2020
Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

Balance at 1 July 3,123              - 

Loan proceeds received          107,768            35,918 
Present value of future cash flows 

discounted at market interest rate           (99,324)           (32,795)
Amount recognised as deferred grant              8,444              3,123 
Amortisation of deferred grant             (5,538) -   

             6,029              3,123 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 22             (3,877) -   
Balance at 30 June               2,152               3,123 

17. LEASE LIABILITIES

Balance at 1 July 235,880         280,330          
Leases obtained during the year 2,758             1,985              
Payments made during the year (41,221)          (46,435)           

17.1 197,417         235,880          
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 22 (89,714)          (40,220)           

107,703          195,660          

17.1 The future minimum lease payments and the period in which they become due are :

Minimum 
lease 

payments 
Mark-up Value Present Value 

---------- Rupees in '000 ----------
For the year ended 30 June 2021

More than one year but less then five years 114,197       6,494             107,703        
Upto one year 102,788       13,074           89,714          
Total lease payments 216,985         19,568            197,417          

For the year ended 30 June 2020
More than one year but less then five years 214,845         (19,185)           195,660          
Upto one year 60,205           (19,985)           40,220            
Total lease payments 275,050         (39,170)           235,880          

Below is detail of loan proceeds received and amount recognized as deferred grant for the impact of below
market interest rate on the loan.
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17.2 Leases

17.2.1 Short term leases

2021 2020
Note ------ Rupees in '000' ------

17.2.2 Amount recognized in statement of profit or loss

Interest expense on lease liabilities 20,725            34,821            

Expense relating to short term leases 17,080            18,804            

17.2.3 Amount recognized in statement of cash flows 

Total cash outflow for leases 61,946            83,345            

18. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Share Appreciation Rights to Chief Executive Officer 18.1 - 1,179              
Staff retirement gratuity - net 18.2 33,979           103,705          

33,979            104,884          

18.1

2021 2020
18.2 Staff retirement gratuity - net ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Present value of defined benefit obligation 18.6 35,116           133,820          
Fair value of plan assets 18.4 (1,137)            (30,115)           

33,979            103,705          

Company's leased assets comprise of plant and machinery and vehicles. Leases of plant and machinery
were obtained in last quarter of year 2018 from Habib Bank Limited and Bank of Khyber. Leased vehicles
have been obtained during different time periods from year 2016 to year 2021. Plant and machinery and
vehicles both have lease term of five years. Under the terms of lease arrangement, the Company has an
option to acquire leased assets at the end of respective lease term and intends to exercise the option. There
are no restrictions imposed on the Company under the terms of leases. Taxes, repair, replacements and
insurance costs are borne by the Company. Interest rate used as discounting factor ranges from 8.34% to
10.06% (2020: 9.67% to 15.66%) per annum. 

In addition to above Company’s leased assets comprise of rented warehouses and office premises, lease
term of which is 12 months or less than 12 months (short term leases). The Company has elected not to
recognize right of use assets and related liability for these short term leases. 

On 27 October 2018, the Board approved share appreciation rights for the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and
affixed 96,946 shares. The CEO was entitled to an amount equal to the market value of these shares. During
the year, the Chief Executive Officer resigned and was paid an amount equivalent to the fair value of these
shares as on 15 June 2021, which amounted to Rs. 3.7 million.
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18.3 Movement in the net liability recognised in 2021 2020
------- Rupees in '000 -------

Balance as at 01 July 103,705         125,695          
Expense recognized in statement of profit or loss 11,525           27,535            
Contributions to fund (82,200)          (31,002)           
Benefits directly paid to employees by the Company - (3,413)             
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income 949                (15,110)           
Balance as at 30 June 33,979            103,705          

18.4 Movement in the fair value of plan assets

Balance as at 1 July 30,115           - 
Contributions during the year 82,200           31,002            
Return on plan assets 3,849             2,151              
Benefits paid (113,092)        (892) 
Actuarial loss on plan assets (1,935)            (2,146)             
Balance as at 30 June 1,137              30,115            

2021 2020 2021 2020
--- Percentage --- ------- Rupees in '000 -------

18.5 Fair value of plan assets

Mutual funds 0.00% 99.94% - 30,098            
Saving accounts 100.00% 0.00% 1,137             - 
Cash / others 0.00% 0.06% - 17 

100.00% 100.00% 1,137              30,115            

18.6 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation:
Note

Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 01 July 133,820         125,695          
Current service cost 7,613             12,086            
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 7,234             17,600            
Losses on plan settlements 527                - 
Benefits paid (2,803)            - 
Settlement benefits paid 18.6.1 (110,289)        (4,305)             
Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive income (986)               (17,256)           
Present value of defined benefit obligation as at 30 June 35,116            133,820          

18.6.1 Pursuant to the decision of Board of Directors, gratuity scheme for the management grade staff has been
discontinued with effective from 31 December 2020, and all the related benefits were paid off by the fund.

the statement of financial position
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2021 2020
18.7 Expense recognized in statement of profit or ------- Rupees in '000 -------

loss is as follows:

Current service cost 7,613             12,086            
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation 7,234             17,600            
Losses on plan settlements 527                - 
Return on plan assets (3,849)            (2,151)             

11,525            27,535            

18.8 Remeasurements chargeable in other comprehensive Income
are as follows:

Actuarial gains from changes in financial assumptions 488 (8,866)           
Experience adjustments (1,374)             (8,390)           

(986)                (17,256)         
Actuarial loss on plan assets 1,935              2,146            

949 (15,110)           

18.9

 Present 
value of 
defined 
benefit 

obligation 

 Experience 
adjustments 

on 
obligations 

June 2021           35,116 (986)
June 2020 133,820         (17,256)           
June 2019 125,695         429 
June 2018 106,325         192 
June 2017 92,319           (5,143)             

18.10 Year End Sensitivity Analysis (± 100 bps) on Defined Benefit Obligation
2021 2020

------- Rupees in '000 -------
Discount Rate + 100 bps 32,359            126,721        
Discount Rate - 100 bps 38,328            141,964        
Salary Increase + 100 bps 38,389            142,152        
Salary Increase - 100 bps 32,251            126,420        

The average duration of the defined benefit obligation is 8.5 years.

Comparison of present value of defined benefit obligation for the current year and previous four years is as
follows:
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18.11 Following significant assumptions were used by the actuary in valuation of the scheme:

2021 2020
Discount rate per annum (%) 10.00% 8.50%
Expected rate of increase in salary level per annum (%) 10.00% 8.50%
Average expected remaining working life time of employees 8.5 years 6 years

The above figures are based on current year's actuarial valuation carried out by Nauman Associates.

2021 2020
19. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES - NET Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Restated
Deferred taxation
Taxable temporary differences:
Accelerated depreciation and amortization 122,039          125,859        
Revaluation surplus on operating fixed assets 39,429            46,515          
Right of use assets 42,654            39,446          

204,122          211,820        
Deductible temporary differences:
Staff retirement benefit - gratuity (9,854)             (30,074)         
Unused tax losses 19.2 (36,499)           (47,034)           
Tax credits 19.2 (127,848)         (80,567)           
Provisions (7,776)             (4,834)           

(181,977)         (162,509)       
22,145            49,311            

19.1 Movement of deferred tax liability is as follows:
Restated

Balance at 01 July 49,311           129,234          
Reversal recognized in statement of profit or loss (26,891)          (86,989)           
(Reversal) / Charge recognized in other comprehensive income (275)                7,066              
Balance at 30 June 22,145            49,311            

19.2 This represents deferred tax asset amounting to Rs. 164.3 million relating to unused tax losses and tax
credits. Based on five-years projections and taking into account the reversal of existing taxable temporary
differences, management considers it probable that future taxable profits would be available against which
these unused tax losses and tax credits can be utilized, therefore, related deferred tax asset has been
recognised.
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2021 2020
20. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Trade creditors and bills payable 130,358         160,753          
Accrued and other liabilities 58,319           47,379            
Advances from customers - unsecured 20.1 5,890             4,711              
Sales tax payable 9,801             25,152            
Withholding taxes payable 2,342             995 
Workers' profit participation fund payable 3,676             - 
Workers' welfare fund payable 716                17 
Payable to employees provident fund 1,506             658 

212,608          239,665          

20.1

21. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

From banking companies - Secured
Short term running finance 75,000         - 40,371            
Inland bills purchased - IBPs 150,000       - - 
Finance against trust receipt 710,000       485,322         335,608          
Short term loan - - 5,459              

935,000       485,322         381,438          
Others - NBFC
Short term loan 125,000       100,000         125,000          
Accrued mark-up on short term borrowings - 9,718             18,771            

21.1 1,060,000      595,040          525,209          

This includes contract liabilities amounting to Rs. 1.07 million (2020: Rs. 1.42 million). This also includes
security deposit from customers amounting to Rs. 0.65 million (2020: Rs. 0.7 million) which are utilizable for
Company business as per the terms agreed with the customers. No amount was utilized for the purpose of
the Company's business during the year. 

Facility 
Amount

Short-term running finance and other facilities have been obtained from various commercial banks and one
Non-Banking Finance Company (NBFC) carrying mark-up ranging from 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.25% to 1.5%
(2020: 3 Months KIBOR plus 1.25% to 2%) per annum calculated on daily product basis.

These facilities are secured by first pari passu and ranking hypothecation charges of entire present and
future current assets, equitable mortgage of property of the Company and personal guarantee of one original
founder / sponsor Director of the Company.

21.1
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2021 2020
22. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

LIABILITIES

Current portion of long term loans 15 78,563           12,979            
Current portion of lease liabilities 17 89,714           40,220            
Current portion of deferred grant 16 3,877             - 
Accrued mark-up on long term loans 1,932             2,589              
Accrued mark-up on lease liabilities 1,731             2,119              

175,817          57,907            

23. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

23.3 Bank guarantees issued by two financial institutions of the Company amounting Rs. 63.23 million (2020: 9.15
million) in favor of the Company's fuel and electricity suppliers.

On 20 May 2020, 'Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue, Audit-I, Zone-I, Haripur' (“CIR”) passed an order
against the Company regarding inadmissibility of sales tax input amounting to Rs. 35.9 million relating to tax
year 2017. On 14 December 2020 Commissioner Appeals upheld the order of CIR. The Company has filed
an appeal against the decision of CIRA before Appellate Tribunal and has not recognized any provision in this
respect in these financial statements as in view of its Legal Advisor, the said case is likely to be decided in
the Company's favour becasue of previous prosecution in Company's favour.

23.1

23.2 On 17 June 2020, 'Additional Collector (Withholding) Khyber-Pakhtunkhwa Regulatory Authority (KPRA)'
passed an order against the Company regarding alleged non withholding of sales tax amounting to Rs. 18.9
million. Against Company’s appeals, Collector (Appeals), KPRA' and ‘Appellate Tribunal for Sales Tax on
Services, KPK’ upheld the order of Additional Collector. The Company has filed a reference before Peshawar
High Court against the Order of 'Appellate Tribunal'. The Company has not recognized provision in this
respect to the extent of Rs. 9.6 million in these financial statements as in view of its Legal Advisor there are
reasonable chnaces of favourable outcome.
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2021 2020
------- Rupees in '000 -------

24. SALES - NET

Sales
- PET Preforms 2,025,987       1,909,664       
- PET Bottles 1,605,610       1,667,601       

3,631,597       3,577,265       
Less: Sales tax
- PET Preforms (295,457)         (278,085)         
- PET Bottles (233,351)         (242,355)         

(528,808)         (520,440)         
- Sales returns and discounts (2,100)             (2,878)             

3,100,689       3,053,947     

24.1

2021 2020
25. COST OF  SALES Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Raw material consumed 2,016,535       1,917,976       
Packing material consumed 105,171          97,164            
Stores, spares and loose tools consumed 54,570            53,246            
Salaries, wages and other benefits 25.1 195,595          202,803          
Electricity, gas and water 287,608          287,927          
Travelling and conveyance 9,920              9,936              
Vehicle running and maintenance 11,104            11,546            
Rent, rate and taxes 17,080            22,137            
Repair and maintenance 10,774            8,950              
Safety and security 9,949              12,388            
Medical 7,589              8,274              
Carriage and freight inward 6,059              6,434              
Communication charges 3,239              2,398              
Printing, postage and stationery 2,031              2,072              
Technical testing and analysis 655 618 
Fees, subscription and professional charges 948 2,480              
Entertainment 720 617 
Staff welfare & support 4,578              4,346              
Depreciation 119,448          124,683          
Other directly attributable cost 163 115 

2,863,736       2,776,110       

Work-in-process - opening 99,846            198,170          
Work-in-process - closing (203,474)         (99,846)           

(103,628)         98,324            

Cost of goods manufactured 2,760,108       2,874,434       

Finished goods - opening 48,077            43,613            
Finished goods - closing (43,929)           (48,077)           

4,148              (4,464)             

Costs to fulfill a contract 33,836            36,013            

2,798,092       2,905,983     

25.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 10.944 million (2020: Rs. 22.27 million).

Revenue recognized during the period includes Rs. 1.418 million (2020: Rs. 3.8 million) which was shown as
advances from customers at the beginning of the period.
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2021 2020
26. OTHER INCOME Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Profit on bank deposits 286 - 
Gain on scrap sales - net 26.1 8,993              16,058            
Net gain on disposal of operating fixed assets - 277 
Miscellaneous income 672 134 
Write back of long outstanding liabilities 3,685              - 

13,636            16,469          

26.1 Gain on scrap sales - net

Sales revenue - scrap items 51,326            40,739            
Cost of scrap sales (42,334)           (24,680)           

8,992              16,059          

27. SELLING EXPENSES

Salaries and benefits 27.1 20,438            20,687            
Vehicle running and maintenance 2,255              2,197              
Office rent 705 736 
Travelling and conveyance 1,151              1,910              
Communications 488 456 
Entertainment 262 333 
Professional charges 175 100 
Repair and maintenance 414 754 
Electricity, water and gas 418 351 
Printing and stationery 126 48 
Advertisement 103 258 
Miscellaneous 17 48 

26,552            27,878          

27.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 2.078 million (2020: Rs. 3.257 million).

2021 2020
28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Salaries and benefits 28.1 58,243            53,140            
Directors' meeting fee 5,450              5,850              
Legal and professional 7,941              5,997              
Travelling and conveyance 650 4,028              
Vehicle running and maintenance 3,977              3,564              
Medical 2,627              2,251              
Rent, rate and taxes 1,088              172 
Auditors' remuneration 28.2 2,200              2,637              
Electricity, gas and water 505 382 
Entertainment 716 984 
Courses, seminar and subscription 1,603              2,168              
Repair and maintenance 2,184              1,832              
Communications 704 639 
Printing and stationery 81 168 
Safety & security 1,726              514 
Advertisement 260 647 
Depreciation and amortization 10,046            10,659            
Miscellaneous 45 154 

100,046          95,786          

28.1 This includes staff retirement benefits amounting to Rs. 5.098 million (2020: Rs. 5.846 million).
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2021 2020
28.2 Auditors' Remuneration Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Annual audit 1,250              1,100              
Half year review 500 400 
Other assurance services 100 100 
Consultation services 175 700 
Out-of-pocket expenses 175 337 

2,200              2,637            

29. OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund 716 - 
Workers' Profit Participation Fund 3,676              - 
Donation 29.1 136 751 
Abnormal loss of materials - 14,900            
Provision for obsolete stock in trade 1,022              217 
Loss on disposal of operating fixed assets 5.1 16,228            - 
Other receivables written off - 1,382              
Provision for contingencies 9,341              - 
Impairment loss on operating assets - idle machine - 13,166            

31,119            30,416          

29.1

2021 2020
30. FINANCE COSTS ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Mark-up on:
Long term loans 10,790            13,733            
Short-term borrowings 50,951            99,942            
Inland bills purchased (IBP) 1,014              - 
Lease liabilities 20,725            34,821            

83,480            148,496          
Letter of credit charges 6,485              6,436              
Bank and other charges 2,694              2,281              

92,659            157,213        

31. TAXATION Restated

Current
Provision for current year 47,280            45,809            

Deferred
Deferred tax income (26,891)           (86,990)           

20,389            (41,181)         

None of donation exceeds 10% of the total amount of donation and none of the directors and their spouse
have any interest in the donee's fund.
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2021 2020
31.1 Relationship between tax (credit) / charge and accounting profit: ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Profit / (loss) before taxation 66,503            (144,881)         

Applicable tax rate 29% 29%

Tax charge / (credit) at the applicable tax rate 19,286            (42,016)         
Other permanent differences 1,103              835               

20,389            (41,181)           

31.2

32. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED 2021 2020

32.1 Basic

Profit / (loss) after taxation (Rupees in '000') 46,114            (103,700)       

Weighted average number of ordinary shares 38,148,947     38,148,947   

Earnings / (loss) per share - basic (Rupees) 1.21 (2.72)

32.2 Diluted

2021 2020
33. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Cash and bank balances 12 28,697            20,278            
Short-term running finance 21 - (40,371)           

28,697            (20,093)         

There is no dilution effect on the basic earnings per share of the Company as the Company has no convertible
potential dilutive instruments outstanding as on 30 June 2021, which would have effect on the basic EPS, if
the option to convert would have been exercised.

The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including the tax year 2020. Tax
returns are deemed to be assessed under provisions of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 ("the Ordinance")
unless selected for an audit by the taxation authorities. The Commissioner of Income Tax may, at any time
during a period of five years from date of filing of return, select the deemed assessment order for audit.
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34. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

2021
Chief 

Executive 
Officer

Executives Total

      ------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------

Managerial remuneration 13,699 28,417            42,116          
Cash bonus 2,725 - 2,725            
Employee benefits 8,774 17,489            26,263          
Post Employment Benefits 2,338 3,901              6,239            
Other Perquisites 926 2,773              3,699            

28,463 52,579            81,042          

Number of persons 2 12

2020
Chief 

Executive 
Officer

Executives Total

      ------------------ Rupees in '000 ------------------

Managerial remuneration 13,989 25,070            39,059            
Provision for shared based payment (122) - (122) 
Employee benefits 8,099 15,408            23,507            
Post Employment Benefits 3,956 5,087              9,043              
Other Perquisites 1,637 3,083              4,720              

27,559 48,648            76,207          

Number of persons 1 10

34.1

34.2

2021 2020
35. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES ------- Number -------

Number of employees as at 30 June 246 247

Average number of employees during the year 244 264

The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements for remuneration, including certain benefits to
Chief Executive Officer and Executives of the Company are as follows:

In addition to the above, the Chief Executive Officer and some of the executives have been provided with free
use of the Company maintained cars. Charge for the year in respect of staff retirement benefit gratuity is
determined on basis of actuarial valuation. 

During the year, Chief Executive Officer resigned from the its office and Chief Operating Officer was
appointed as the Chief Executive Officer of the Company. 
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36. TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Cash dividend to Non-Executive Directors - 2,117            

Meeting fee paid to Non-Executive Directors 5,450              5,850            

Remuneration including benefits and perquisites of key management
personnel 56,127            50,542          

3 
Cash dividend to Executive Directors - 2,974            

Contribution to employees' provident fund 12,343            7,754            

Payment against Share Appreciation Rights to 
Chief Executive Officer 18.1 3,787              -

Payment to employees' gratuity fund 82,200            31,002          

Following are the related parties with whom the Company had entered into transactions during the year:

Related Party
Bonus shares 

issued

Number of 
shares held in 
the Company 

(Closing)

Aggregate 
%age 

shareholding in 
the Company

Mr. Amar Zafar Khan Chairman of the Board - 818 0.002%
Mr. Mohammad Raza Chinoy Chief Executive Officer - 818 0.002%
Mr. Hussain Jamil Non-Executive Director - 6,559,182       17.194%
Mr. Ahsan Jamil Non-Executive Director - 1,107              0.003%
Mr. Shahan Jamil* Non-Executive Director - 818 0.002%
Mr. Ali Jamil Non-Executive Director - 28,177            0.074%
Mr. Asad Ali Sheikh Non-Executive Director - 818 0.002%
Ms. Sonya Jamil Non-Executive Director - 514 0.001%
Mr. Rehan Jamil Non-Executive Director - 824 0.002%
Mr. Muhammad Ali Adil Key Management

Personnel - - 
Mr. Zameer-ul-Hassan Key Management

Personnel - - 
Employees' Provident Fund N/A N/A N/A

Employees' Gratuity Fund N/A N/A N/A

*During the year Mr. Shahan Jamil (related party) has resigned from the directorship of the Company and was
appointed as Chief Information Officer. His remuneration is included in remuneration to key management
personnel as disclosed in note 36.

Related parties comprise of directors, key management personnel, entities over which the directors are able
to exercise influence, employees' provident fund and gratuity fund. Balances with related parties have been
disclosed in note 13, 18, 20 and 21.1 to the financial statements. Transactions with related parties during the
year are as follows:

Basis of relationship

Employees' post- 
employment benefit- plan
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37. SEGMENT REPORTING

37.1 Description of operating segments

Reportable segments Operations

Injection

Blowing

37.2 Information about reportable segments

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020

Total Sales 2,647,097   2,512,298    1,370,160   1,423,944    4,017,257    3,936,242    
Less: Intersegment sales

 (eliminated) (916,568)     (882,295)     -              -              (916,568)      (882,295)     
Sales-net 1,730,529   1,630,003    1,370,160   1,423,944    3,100,689    3,053,947    

Total Cost of Sales (1,557,189)  (1,560,351)  (2,157,471)  (2,227,927)  (3,714,660)   (3,788,278)  
Less: Intersegment cost

 (eliminated) -              -              916,568      882,295      916,568       882,295      
Cost of sales-net (1,557,189)  (1,560,351)  (1,240,903)  (1,345,632)  (2,798,092)   (2,905,983)  

173,340      69,652 129,257    78,312 302,597       147,964

Selling expenses (14,819)       (14,880)       (11,733)       (12,998)       (26,552)        (27,878)       
Administrative

expenses (55,837)       (51,124)       (44,209)       (44,662)       (100,046)      (95,786)       
Impairment gain on 

trade debts 361             1,056          285             923             646              1,979          
(70,295)       (64,948)     (55,657)     (56,737)     (125,952)      (121,685)   

Operating profit 103,045      4,704 73,600      21,575 176,645       26,279

Segment assets 1,167,353   1,249,680    855,567      676,746      2,022,920    1,926,426    
Unallocated assets -              -              -              -              118,865       148,497      

1,167,353   1,249,680  855,567    676,746 2,141,785    2,074,923  

Segment liabilities 613,846      726,837      440,356      381,692      1,054,202    1,108,529    
Unallocated liabilities -              -              -              -              237,514       161,765      

613,846      726,837 440,356    381,692 1,291,716    1,270,294  

Capital expenditure 52,285        46,732        9,747          42,861        62,032         89,593        
Unallocated capital 

expenditure -              -              -              -              26,113         23,684        
52,285        46,732 9,747        42,861 88,145         113,277

Business segments are determined based on the Company's management and internal reporting structure. The
Company has two operating segments which are also the reporting segments i.e., injection and blowing. 

Engaged in buying PET Resin and other raw materials for the purpose of production of
PET preforms (finished product of this segment) which is used as a raw material in
Blowing segment for manufacturing of PET bottles.

Engaged in using PET preforms produced by the Injection segment, purchasing PET
preforms and other raw materials from external suppliers for the purpose of production of
PET bottles (finished product of this segment).

The Company’s Chief Executive officer reviews the internal management reports of each segment at least quarterly.

Information related to each reportable segment is set out below. Segment profit / (loss) before tax is used to measure
performance because management believes that this information is the most relevant in evaluating the results of the
respective segments relative to other entities that operate in the same industries.

Injection Blowing Total

--------------------------------------------- Rupees in '000 ---------------------------------------------
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37.3 Reconciliations of information on reportable segments to the amounts reported in the statement of
Profit or loss :

2021 2020
------- Rupees in '000 -------

Operating profit of the reportable segments 176,645       26,279
Add: other income 13,636         16,469
Less: other expenses (31,119)        (30,416)     
Finance costs (92,659)        (157,213)   
Profit / (loss) before taxation as per statement of profit or loss 66,503         (144,881)     

37.4

37.5

- Blowing Segment: three customers having revenues amounting to Rs. 1,170 million (2020: Rs. 1,226 million).

- Injection Segment: three customers having revenues amounting to Rs. 1,145 million (2020: Rs. Rs. 666 million).

- Injection and Blowing: one customer having revenues amounting to Rs. 632 million (2020: Rs.281 million).

37.6

37.7

Administrative expenses, selling expenses and impairment loss on trade debs have been allocated on the basis of the
net sales value of each segment.

Revenue from six customers of the Company amounted to Rs. 2,315 million (2020: Rs. 2,173 million). The segments
from which these revenues were generated are listed below:

Both the segments are operating in same geographical locations and does not have geographically dispersed
customers.

Loss on disposal amounting to Rs. 16.2 million (2020: Impairment loss amounting to Rs. 13.1 million) and Rs. nil
(2020: Impairment loss amounting to Rs. 8.1 million) (net of related tax) has been recognized in statement of profit
and loss and statement of comprehensive income respectively, on a machine relating to injection segment.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS – FAIR VALUES AND RISK MANAGEMENT

38.1 Classification and fair values

- Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1).

Fair value is the amount that would be received on sale of an asset or paid on transfer of a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences can arise
between carrying values and fair value estimates. Underlying definition of fair value is the presumption that the
Company is a going concern without any intention or requirement to curtail materially the scale of its operations
or to undertake a transaction on adverse terms.

IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurements' requires the Company to classify fair value measurements using a fair
value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements. The fair value
hierarchy has the following levels:

- Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that 'is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).
- Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)
(level 3).

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and liabilities. The fair value
of financial assets measured at fair value is shown below. It does not include fair value information for financial
assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value as the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation
of fair value as the current financial assets and liabilities are short term and some financial assets are also
interest bearing.

Amortized FVTPL Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Cost

Note
For the year ended 30 June 2021

Financial assets measured at fair value
Long term deposits  -    12,209       -      -   -    12,209    12,209 
Short term deposits  -         200    200      -   -      200        200 

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade debts - net of allowance for impairment 8     228,181    -       228,181      -   -          -    -   
Short term investments 11      7,125    -          7,125      -   -          -    -   
Cash and bank balances 12   28,697    -      28,697      -   -          -    -   

    264,003     12,409     264,203      -   -     12,409    12,409 

Financial liabilities not measured
at fair value

Long term loans (including current portion) 15     218,074    -       218,074      -   -          -    -   
Lease liabilities (including current portion) 17     197,417    -       197,417      -   -          -    -   
Trade creditors and bills payable 20     130,358    -       130,358      -   -          -    -   
Accrued and other liabilities 20   58,319    -      58,319      -   -          -    -   
Short term borrowings 21     595,040    -       595,040      -   -          -    -   

 1,199,208    -    1,199,208      -   -         -    -   

For the year ended 30 June 2020

Financial assets measured at fair value
Long term deposits  -       12,209    12,209      -   -    12,209     12,209 
Short term deposits  -     3,027        3,027      -   -     3,027      3,027 

Financial assets not measured at fair value
Trade debts - net of allowance for impairment 8     214,694    -       214,694      -   -          -    -   
Cash and bank balances 12   20,278    -      20,278      -   -          -    -   

    234,972     15,236     250,208      -   -    15,236     15,236 

Financial liabilities not measured
at fair value

Long term loans (including current portion) 15     104,795    -       104,795      -   -          -    -   
Lease liabilities (including current portion) 17     235,880    -       235,880      -   -          -    -   
Trade creditors and bills payable 20 160,753       -       160,753      -   -        -    -   
Accrued and other liabilities 20   47,379    -      47,379      -   -          -    -   
Short term borrowings 21     525,209    -       525,209      -   -          -    -   

 1,074,016    -    1,074,016      -   -         -    -   

-------------------------------- Rs. in '000 --------------------------------

Carrying amount Fair value
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38.2 Financial risk management

The Company has exposure to the following risks arising from financial instruments:

- credit risk
- liquidity risk
- market risk

38.2.1 Credit risk

i) Trade receivables

The Company’s board of directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
Company’s risk management framework.

The Company’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced by the
Company, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk
management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and the
Company’s activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and procedures,
aims to maintain a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and obligations.

The Company audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Company’s risk
management policies and procedures, and reviews the adequacy of the risk management framework in
relation to the risks faced by the Company. The Company's audit committee is assisted in its oversight
role by internal audit. Internal audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management
controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the audit committee.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Company’s receivables
from customers and bank balances.

The carrying amounts of financial assets represent the maximum credit exposure. 'Impairment reversal
on financial assets' recognized in statement of profit or loss amounts to Rs. 0.64 million (2020: Rs. 1.97
million) and relates only to trade debts.

The Company’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. However, management also considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its
customer base. Geographically there is no concentration of credit risk. 

The Company has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed individually for
creditworthiness before the Company's payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The
Company's reviews includes external ratings, if they are available, financial statements, credit agency
information, industry information and in some cases bank references. The Company limits its exposure to
credit risk from trade receivables by establishing a maximum payment period of one to three months for
customers.

In monitoring customer credit risk, customers are grouped according to their credit characteristics,
including whether they are an individual or a legal entity, their geographic location, industry, trading
history with the company and existence of previous financial difficulties.

The Company does not require collateral in respect of trade receivables. The Company does not have
trade debts for which no loss allowance is recognized because of collateral. At 30 June 2021, the
carrying amount of the Company's most significant customer was Rs. 75.8 million (2020: Rs. 49.7 million)
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Expected credit loss (ECL) assessment for customers 

Loss rates are based on actual credit loss experience over the past five years. These rates are multiplied
by scalar factors to reflect differences between economic conditions during the period over which the
historical data has been collected, current conditions and the Company’s view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.

Scalar factors are based on actual and forecast, gross domestic product rates and consumer price index
rates.

The decrease in loss allowance is mainly attributable to recoveries and changes in macroeconomic
factors. The methodology for the calculation of ECL is the same as described in the last annual financial
statements.

Movements in the allowance for impairment in respect of trade debts has been disclosed in note 8.1,
Trade receivables written off are still subject to enforcement activity.

The following table provides information about the exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables
as at 30 June 2021.

The Company uses an allowance matrix to measure the ECLs of trade receivables. Loss rates are
calculated using a ‘roll rate’ method based on the probability of a receivable progressing through
successive stages of delinquency to write-off. Roll rates are calculated based on the following credit risk
characteristics – geographic region, age of customer relationship and average of year-wise probability of
default.

30 June 2021

Note Percentage
Current (not past due) 0.38% 177,431    (680)           No
1–30 days past due 0.87% 40,319      (350)           No
31–60 days past due 11.55% 10,309      (1,190)        No
61–90 days past due 34.13% 49            (17)             No
More than 90 days past 48.76% 4,508       (2,198)        No

8     232,616         (4,435)

30 June 2020

Note Percentage
Current (not past due) 0.57% 115,635    (665)           No
1–30 days past due 1.16% 98,010      (1,137)        No
31–60 days past due 12.95% 108          (14)             No
61–90 days past due 39.34% -           -             No
More than 90 days past 54.21% 6,022       (3,265)        No

8     219,775         (5,081)

---------- Rupees in '000 -----

Credit 
impaired

Weighted 
average 
loss rate

Gross
carrying
amount

Loss
allowance

Credit 
impaired

-------- Rupees in '000 --------

Weighted 
average 
loss rate

Gross
carrying
amount

Loss
allowance
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ii) Bank balances

38.2.2 Market risk

a) Foreign exchange risk management

- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items
- Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues
- The potential currency exposures are discussed below

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency monetary items

Transactional exposure in respect of non functional currency expenditure and revenues

Exposure to foreign currency risk

b) Interest / mark up rate risk

Monetary items, including financial assets and liabilities, denominated in currencies other than the
functional currency of the Company are periodically restated to PKR equivalent, and the associated gain
or loss is taken to the statement of profit or loss. The foreign currency risk related to monetary items is
managed as part of the risk management strategy.

Certain operating and capital expenditures are incurred by the Company in currencies other than the
functional currency.

The Company is not significantly exposed to foreign currency risk as at date of statement of financial
position.

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk on
its running finance arrangements which is repriced at a maximum period of 120 days.

PKR is the functional currency of the Company and exposure arises from transactions and balances in
currencies other than PKR as foreign exchange rate fluctuations may create unwanted and unpredictable
earnings and cash flow volatility. The Company's potential currency exposure comprise:

The Company has bank balances of Rs. 28.597 million at 30 June 2021 (2020: Rs. 20.178 million). The
bank balances are held with banks which are rated A1 to AA-, based on PACRA and VIS ratings.
Although bank balances are also subject to the requirements of IFRS 9, the identified impairment loss
was immaterial as the counter parties have reasonably high credit ratings.

Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in
market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument,
change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the
market. The Company is exposed to currency risk and interest rate risk.
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Exposure to interest rate risk

2021 2020
Note ------- Rupees in '000 -------

Fixed-rate instruments - Financial assets
Bank balance in interest-bearing account 12 2,760           360

Fixed-rate instruments - Financial liabilities
Long-term loans (including current portion) 83,299         32,795            

Variable-rate instruments - Financial liabilities
Short-term borrowings 21 595,040       525,209          
Long-term loans (including current portion) 15 134,775       72,000            
Lease liabilities 17 197,417       235,880          

927,231        833,089           

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed-rate instruments

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable-rate instruments

During the year, if average KIBOR interest rate on borrowings had been 100 basis points higher / lower
with all other variables held constant, profit after taxation for the year would have been lower / higher by
Rs. 9.71 million (2020: higher / lower by Rs. 8.66 million) respectively, mainly as a result of higher / lower
interest exposure on variable rate borrowing.

The interest rate profile of the Company’s interest-bearing financial instruments is as follows:

The Company does not account for any fixed-rate financial assets or financial liabilities at FVTPL.
Therefore, a change in interest rates at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss.
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38.2.3 Liquidity risk

38.3 Capital risk management

There were no changes to the Company’s approach to capital management during the year and the Company
is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

It is not expected that the cash flows included in the maturity analysis could occur significantly earlier or at
significantly different amounts.

The contractual cash flows relating to long term borrowings have been determined on the basis of expected
mark-up rates. The mark-up rates have been disclosed in note 15 & 17.2 to these financial statements.

The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return on capital to shareholders or issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Company manages its capital risk by monitoring its debt levels and
liquid assets and keeping in view future investment requirements and expectation of the shareholders. Debt is
calculated as total borrowings ('long term financing' and 'short term borrowings' as shown in the balance
sheet). Total capital comprises shareholders’ equity and surplus on revaluation of fixed assets as shown on
the face of  the statement of financial position.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company’s approach to
managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when
they are due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Company’s reputation. Beyond effective working capital and cash management, the Company
mitigates liquidity risk by arranging short-term financing from highly rated financial institutions. 

The Company aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents at an amount in excess of expected
cash outflows on financial liabilities. The maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities based on the
contractual amounts are as follows:

2021

Note

Short term borrowings 21 595,040        595,040        595,040        -               -               -               
Long term loans - secured 

(including current portion) 15 218,074        254,412        91,314          71,097          87,834          4,167            
Lease liabilities 

(including current portion) 17 197,417        216,860        102,788        95,594          18,478          -               
Trade and other payables 20 188,677        188,677        188,677        -               -               -               

1,199,208     1,254,989     977,819        166,691        106,312        4,167            

2020

Short term borrowings 21 525,209        525,209        525,209        -               -               -               
Long term loans - secured 

(including current portion) 15 104,795        130,302        21,342          40,290          64,611          4,059            
Lease liabilities 

(including current portion) 17 235,880        275,050        60,135          102,300        112,615        -               
Trade and other payables 20 187,575        187,575        187,575        -               -               -               

1,053,459     1,118,136     794,261        142,590        177,226        4,059            

----------------------------------- Rupees '000 -----------------------------------

One to two 
years

Two to five 
years

Five years 
onwards

----------------------------------- Rupees '000 -----------------------------------

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Up to one 
year

One to two 
years

Two to five 
years

Five years 
onward

Carrying 
amount

Contractual 
cash flows

Up to one 
year
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39. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Short term 
borrowings

Short-
term 

running 
finance

Finance 
lease 

liabilities

Long 
term 
loan

Share 
capital

Unappropriated 
profits

Total

Balance at 01 July 2020 484,838      40,371   235,880   104,795 381,489  284,558            1,531,931   

Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from loans 1,947,702   -        -          141,659 -        -        2,089,361   
Repayment of loans (1,828,447)  -        -          (25,474)  -        -        (1,853,921)  
Payment of lease liabilities -             -        (41,221)   -        -        -        (41,221)       

Total changes from financing cash flows 119,255      -        (41,221) 116,185 -        -        194,219      

Other changes
Liability related
Decrease in short-term running finance -             (40,371)  -          -        -        -        (40,371)       
Finance cost expense for the year 61,144       -        -          -        -        -        61,144        
Finance cost paid - short-term borrowings (70,197)      -        -          -        -        -        (70,197)       
Transferred to deferred grant -             -        -          (8,444)    -        -        (8,444)         
Amortisation of deferred grant -             -        -          5,538     -        -        5,538  
Leases obtained -             -        2,758      -        -        -        2,758  
Total liability related other changes (9,053)        (40,371)  2,758      (2,906)    -        -        (49,572)       

Equity related
Total comprehensive income for the year -             -        -          -        -        45,440   45,440        
Transfer of incremental depreciation and-
Surplus on assets disposed off - net of tax -             -        -          -        -        17,349   -     

Issue of bonus shares -             -        -          -        -        -        -     
Total equity related other changes -             -        -          -        -        62,789   45,440        
Balance at 30 June 2021 595,040      -        197,417  218,074 381,489  347,347            1,739,367   

Balance at 01 July 2019 724,317      13,365   280,330   137,000 346,809  415,651            1,917,472   

Changes from financing cash flows
Proceeds from loans 2,042,205   -        -          35,918   -        -        2,078,123   
Repayment of loans (2,281,962)  -        -          (65,000)  -        -        (2,346,962)  
Payment of lease liabilities -             -        (46,435)   -        -        -        (46,435)       
Finance costs paid -             -        (36,910) (13,863)  -        -        (50,773)       
Dividend paid -             -        -          -        -        (17,148)  (17,148)       
Total changes from financing cash flows (239,757)     -        (83,345) (42,945)  -        (17,148)  (383,195)     

Liability related
Increase in short-term running finance -             27,006   -          -        -        -        27,006        
Finance cost paid - short-term borrowings (108,381)     -        -          -        -        -        (108,381)     
Decrease in accrued mark up -             -        2,089      130        -        -        2,219  
Transferred to deferred grant -             -        -          (3,123)    -        -        (3,123)         
Leases obtained -             -        1,985      -        -        -        1,985  
Finance cost expense for the year 108,659      -        34,821    13,733   -        -        157,213      
Total liability related other changes 278            27,006  38,895    10,740   -        -        76,919        

Equity related
Total comprehensive income for the year -             -        -          -        -        (92,972)  (92,972)       
Transfer of incremental depreciation -             -        -          -        -        13,899   13,899        
Issue of bonus shares -             -        -          -        34,680  (34,680)  -     
Change in unclaimed dividend -             -        -          -        -        (192)      (192)   
Total equity related other changes -             -        -          -        34,680  (113,945)           (79,265)       

Balance at 30 June 2020 484,838      40,371   235,880   104,795 381,489  284,558            1,531,931   

Liabilities Equity

---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees '000 ----------------------------------------------------------



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020
Note

40. PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

Blowing
Capacity - no. of bottles (in '000) 327,144      327,144     
Production - no. of bottles (in '000) 40.1 130,195      134,505     
Utilization 40% 41%

Injection
Capacity - no. of preforms (in '000) 728,864      728,864     
Production - no. of preforms (in '000) 420,473      376,837     
Utilization 58% 52%

40.1

41. COMPARATIVE FIGURES - Restatements

41.1 Provision for Minimum Tax

As previously 
reported

---------- Rupees in '000' ----------
30 June 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss

Income tax charge for the period - current -           45,809         45,809 
Deferred tax income           (41,181) (45,809)           (86,990)
Loss after taxation         (103,700) -      103,700 

Statement of Financial Position

Advance tax - net          158,000        (80,567)         77,433 
Deferred tax liabilities - net          129,878        (80,567)         49,311 

01 July 2019

Statement of Financial Position

Advance tax - net          138,581        (34,758) 103,823     
Deferred tax liabilities - net          163,992        (34,758) 129,234     

The reason of shortfall is due to the demand and supply situation of the market.

Previously, no provision for Minimum Tax was recognized in the Company’s financial statements on the grounds
that minimum tax is adjustable against the future years’ tax liability. Recently, the Accounting Standard Board
(the Board) of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) issued an Opinion whereby the Board
concluded that; the minimum tax levied under section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 should be
recognized as current tax expense; and a deferred tax asset should be recognised for the amount of minimum
tax paid for a period in excess of tax based on taxable income subject to the probability of availability of future
taxable profits against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilized.

In line with the Board's opinion, the Company has recognized provision for minimum tax and related deferred tax
asset in the financial statements. In accordance with the requirements of IAS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors”, this change has been applied retrospectively, and the related financial
statement impacts are as follows:

Effect of 
restatement

Balance 
after 

restatement

The above restatement does not have any impact on the comparative statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows. In comparative statement of profit or loss net impact on loss before taxation is nil. 



Ecopack Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended 30 June 2021

2021 2020
------- Rupees in '000 -------

42. PROVIDENT FUND

43. NON-ADJUSTING EVENT AFTER THE DATE OF STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION.

44. DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE

_______________ _______________ _______________
Chief financial Chief Executive Director

Officer Officer

their meeting held on 25 September 2021.
These financial statements were authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the Company in

The investments in collective investment scheme out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the
provision of Section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017 and the regulations formulated for this purpose.

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 25 September 2021 has proposed a common stock dividend at the
rate of 10% (2020: Nil) for the year ended 30 June 2021. These appropriations will be placed before
shareholders for approval in the forthcoming Annual General Meeting and the effect thereof will be accounted for
in the financial statements for the year ending 30 June 2022.
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